Davis, Linda S

From: Davis, Linda S

Sent: Wednesday, May 27, 2009 4:50 PM

To: chmegrad@ecn.purdue.edu; chme@ecn.purdue.edu
Cc: Gauger, Steve A

Subject: Safety Update #9: UCLA Fatality Investigation
Attachments: CENews_UCLA Fatality.pdf

ChE Faculty, Staff and Graduate Students,

Attached is a C&E News article that details the OSHA findings in the fatal lab accident at
UCLA (see Safety Update #7). The department was cited for lack of safety training, failure
to ensure that employees wear appropriate PPE and failure to correct previously identified
unsafe conditions. The department was fined, and OSHA has referred the case to the local
district attorney's office for evaluation.

This was a terrible accident that could have been prevented. It is also a stark reminder
that we must continuously adhere to Purdue's safety process - to ensure the safety of
everyone in chemical engineering.

Thank you to Professor Wankat for sharing this article.
Linda

Linda S. Davis

Industrial Education Director
School of Chemical Engineering
Purdue University

480 Stadium Mall Dr.

West Lafayette, IN 47907-2100
Phone: (765)496-1710
lsdavis@purdue.edu




NEWS OF THE WEEK

NEGLIGENCE
CAUSED UCLA DEATH

SAFETY: State safety and health
agenr:{v faults university for
training lapses, unsafe practices

EGLIGENCE OF LAB SAFETY by the depart-

ment of chemistry and biochemistryat UCLA

led to the Dec. 29, 2008, accident and subse-
quent death of researcher Sheharbano (Sheri) Sangji,
says the state agency charged with investigating the
incident.

In particular, the California Division of Occupa-
tional Safety & Health (Cal/OSHA) cited the depart-
mentin a report released on May 4 for lacking both
safety training and training documentation; failing to
ensure employees wore appropriate personal protec-
tive cquipment (PPE), such as lab coats; and failing to
correct unsafe conditions and work practices identified
inan Oct. 30, 2008, laboratory safety inspection.

Among the findings of the October lab inspection
was that PPE was not fully used in the Iab in which the
23-year-old Sangji worked. She was not wearingalab
coat in December when pyrophoric material she was
handling splashed and ignited her clothing.

Sangji’s supervisor, professor Patrick Harran, says
that he did address the PPE issues with his group. “My
expectation is that everyone is to wearalab coatand
wear protective gear on their eyes,” he says, adding that
a lab coat is specifically ordered for everyone who joins
the group. He refused to speculare as to why Sangji was
not wearing her coat on the day of the accident. The
two postdoctoral researchers who were in the lab with
her were both wearing their lab coats, Harran says.

In a prepared statement, UCLA says that other is-
sues identified in the October inspection had been
corrected, but the improvements had not been docu-
mented because Harran’s group was moving to new lab
space. Safety officers planned to reinspect the lab after
it had relocated, the university says.

The Cal/OSHA report says that, when
the incident occurred, Sangji was draw-
ing approximarely 20 mL of 1.7 mol{L
tert-butyllithium in pentane intoa 60-
ml syringe when the syringe plunger
was either ¢jected or pulled out of the
syringe. An undetermined amount of the
liquid splashed onto her hands, arms,
and torso. The ensuing fire burned more
than 40% of her body. One of the post-
doctoral researchers used his lab coat
to extinguish the flames and called for
help. Sangji died of her injuries on Jan. 16
(C&EN Online Latest News, Jan. 22).

The Cal/OSHA report “shedsvery
little light on the incident,” says Naveen  Harran

Sangji, Sheri’s sister. Naveen and her family would still
like to know more about the circumstances that led to
the fire.

The Cal/OSHA citations carry a total fine of $31,875.
Itis the largest fine levied by the agency in seven inves-
tigations since 2006 that involved academic research
labs or the chemical or biotechnology industry. Forin-
cidents that involve a fatality, Cal/OSHA routinely for-
wards its findings to the local district attorney’s office
to evaluate whether criminal prosecution is warranted.

“I think Cal/OSHA did everything they could” within
their regulatory structure to penalize UCLA, says Neal
Langerman, the founder of the company Advanced
Chemical Safety and a consultant to the American
Chemical Sociery Committee on Chemical Safety.

UCLAwillnot
contest the findings
orappeal the fine,
it says in its state-
ment. The univer-
sity also outlined
the stepsitis taking
toaddress the defi-
ciencies, including
requiring written
safety assessments
of laboratory pro-
cedures. The as-
sessments include
quantifying hazards,
assessing potential
risks, and specifying
appropriate PPE.
The university is
also developing new standard operating procedures for
handling high-risk materials, it says.

Sangji graduated in May 2008 with a bachelor’s
degree in chemistry from Pomona College. She then
worked at Norac Pharma, in Azusa, Calif,, for four
months before starting work in Harran’s lab.

Regarding Sangji’s training to handle tert-butyllith-
ium, “She was supervised by senior personnel in my
lab and shown how to do this particular procedure. She
repeated it successfully,” Harran says. Nevertheless,
he says that in hindsight he overesti-
mated “her understanding of the care
necessary when working with such
materials.”

Langerman says the safety culture
in academia generally lags far behind
thatin industry and that even minor
incidents in academic labs are far too
frequent and treated as too routine.
He adds that the incident thatled to
Sangji’s death could happen at any
school and should serve as a wake-up
call for faculty, university officials,
funding agencies, and professional
societies to put a new emphasis on lab
safety.—JYLLIAN KEMSLEY
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